
MINUTES 
NASSAU BAY ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 

JULY 23, 2007 
7:00 P.M. 

MEMBERS OF THE CORPORATION PRESENT: President Don Matter and Directors 
Ron Swofford, David Braun, Mark Denman, and Gary Mossman (entered Chamber at 
7:04 pm), 

MEMBERS ABSENT: Directors Joe Murdock and George Dempsey 

OTHERS PRESENT: City Manager John Kennedy, City Attorney Dick Gregg, Jr ,  City 
Secretary Pat Jones, Finance Director David Quick, Building Official Larry Boles, and 
Planning Commission Chairman Roscoe Lee 

PRESIDING: Don Matter 

CALL TO ORDER 

The meeting was called to order at 7:00 pm 

ROLL CALL 

President Matter announced that a quorum was present, Director Mossman was 
expected momentarily Directors Dempsey and Murdock were absent, 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

The minutes of the Regular Meeting of April 23, 2007, were presented for approval 

It was moved by Ron Swofford, seconded by Mark Denman, that the minutes be 
approved as submitted 

Motion passed 4 to 0, with M r  Mossman not yet present and voting 

The minutes of the Special Meeting with City Council on May 7, 2007, were presented 
for approval 

It was moved by Ron Swofford, seconded by David Braun, that the minutes be approved 
as presented 

Motion passed 4 to 0, with M r  Mossman not yet present and voting 

OPENING REMARKS: None 

REPORTS 

CITY MANAGER: Mr Kennedy had no report at this time 



CITIZENS' HEARING 

There were no public comments, and the public hearing was closed 

NEW BUSINESS 

Review and Make Recommendation to Council Regarding Funding of Membership 
Agreement with Bay Area Houston Economic Partnership 

John Kennedy referred to the proposed three-year agreement for $15,000 annually 
which lists the services BAHEP proposes to provide I listed some of the things they 
have worked with us on, as well as future projects, Mr Kennedy said 

A significant issue for which we will be seeking BAHEP's assistance is the leasing of the 
current Boeing Building The building will be vacant by March 2008 They will be helping 
us find tenants 

Don Matter questioned why a three-year agreement was wanted 

John Kennedy responded that they were trying to get all their city contracts on a three- 
year basis and reminded that BAHEP had proposed this term length last year but the 
EDC had recommended a one-year contract at that time 

Ron Swofford asked if we had the ability to get out of the contract because of the 
concern of this Council making something a future Council had to live with 

Don Matter said yes with a thirty-day notice John Kennedy agreed, saying there were 
termination clauses in the contract, 

City Attorney Gregg ruled the termination wording was sufficient 

John Kennedy said the EDC's action would be to recommend to Council to approve or 
disapprove the contract 

It was moved by Mark Denman, seconded by Ron Swofford, that the EDC recommend 
to Council that the agreement with BAHEP be approved as written 

Motion passed 4 to 0, with David Braun abstaining 

Approval of EDC Budget for Fiscal Year 200712008 Pursuant to  Section 6..02 of the 
Bylaws 

John Kennedy said the next to last column on the page contains the actual budget 
Projected income is $170,000 based on the 1/2 cent sales tax the EDC receives 

Mr Kennedy highlighted the expenditures portion, discussing various line items 

The bulk of the available funding, $60,000 00, has been left as a reserve, Mr Kennedy 
said, to be used as the EDC desires as we go throughout the year 



Mr Kennedy referenced figures near the end of the page A $32,000 development 
services amount is primarily for consulting services that we expect to expend throughout 
the year Line 51 10, debt service, is the debt on the automotive shop purchased three 
years ago to house Public Works, 

It was moved by Mark Denman, seconded by Ron Swofford, that the budget be 
approved 

Gary Mossman asked who would be providing development services under this budget 

John Kennedy said we have a current agreement with Transwestern; however, that 
agreement may not continue It will be whomever the EDC decides There has been 
some discussion about terminating that agreement but, even if we do, I believe there will 
still be some development services that the EDC will require 

Gary Mossman said that the agenda fact sheet speaks to Transwestern but from some 
earlier discussions there was some question as to where this all stood 

Don Matter said that, as of today, there is still a contract in place We have not taken any 
action yet 

Mr Mossman asked who is providing those services, has Kevin Kuklis taken Will 
Deane's place 

John Kennedy said he is at this time; however, his name will probably not be the name 
on the contract 

Gary Mossman asked his status 

John Kennedy said he thought M r  Kuklis would continue to work at Transwestern but 
they have a new Director of Development who is currently going through all their 
projects If he is interested in Nassau Bay, and we feel he and Transwestern can provide 
a legitimate service for us, it might be beneficial to continue our relationship with them, 
Mr Kennedy said On the other hand, if he is not interested in our project, it will probably 
be wise to cut our ties with Transwestern and look elsewhere for these services 

M r  Mossman said he was in favor of approving the budget but this remains an open 
subject, 

Don Matter agreed, saying one day we would have to make a final decision on the 
Transwestern contract, but that would be at another time The money budgeted will 
probably be used one way or another 

David Braun asked if it was thought we would attend the Las Vegas convention again 
next year 

Don Matter said it was too soon to know It depends on where we stand at the time We 
met with the Marriot while we were out there, and they are coming to look us over 
tomorrow, so it was a good meeting If there's something to be gained from it, we will go 
back next year 



Gary Mossman said on the revenue side, we don't seem to be gaining and asked if this 
was because the Brentwood Inn closed or of this is a conservative budget 

It was discussed that the projected revenue figure was conservative and, depending on 
how quickly retail development came about, the number could be increased 

Mr Braun pointed out that a possible future negative factor could be the demolition of 
the buildings on either side of City Hall which are currently producing some sales tax 
income 

There being no further discussion, motion passed 5 to 0 

Approval of Orders for Payment: 
A,. To Reimburse the City of Nassau Bay for: 

1. Transwestern for Development Services: $7,500.00 
2. Hilton Office Rent: $300.00 
3,. Gregg & Gregg Legal: $1,525..00 
4. ICSC Convention Travel Expenses: $1,545.24 
5. TEDC Membership: $350..00 
6,. BAHEP Meeting: $20..00 

B,. WCF Development, LLC for ICSC Convention: $11,611..12 
C,. Chansen Publishing Inc.. - Hilton Luna: $2,600..00 
D,. Allen Boone Humphries Robinson LLP for Mgt,. District Legal: 

$22,311.78.. 

Don Matter questioned the payment to Allen Boone, asking if that was one-half of the fee 
owed 

John Kennedy said it was half of the fee, plus expenses, leaving a balance of $20k 
which has been deferred until the Management District is up and operational Funds 
from the District can then pay back the legal fees 

Referring to the Management District, Don Matter said he would be recommending no 
action be taken at a later Council meeting this evening because we heard from the State 
Comptroller's office late Friday about deadlines We have until the end of September I 
plan on having a discussion, Mr Matter said, but the appointments are not as urgent as 
previously thought 

It was moved by Mark Denman, seconded by Ron Swofford, that the items be approved 
for payment 

David Braun asked City Attorney Gregg if he could vote on this item, and Mr Gregg said 
Yes 

Gary Mossman questioned the total fee for Allen Boone 

John Kennedy said there was a flat fee of $40k for creation of the Management District 
and that covered two legislative sessions because the first bill failed two years ago 

Mayor Matter said we didn't have to pay anything for the failed attempt 




